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NOAS 

LAW OFFICES OF F. PETER JAMES, ESQ. 

F. Peter James, Esq. 

Nevada Bar No. 10091 

3821 West Charleston Boulevard, Suite 250 

Las Vegas, Nevada  89102 

Peter@PeterJamesLaw.com 

702-256-0087 

702-256-0145 (fax) 

Counsel for Plaintiff 

 

DISTRICT COURT, FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 

Notice is hereby given that Plaintiff, Jaswinder Singh, hereby appeals to 

the Supreme Court of Nevada from the Order entered on March 14, 2019 and 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

 

JASWINDER SINGH, 

 

                   Plaintiff, 

 

vs. 

 

RAJWANT KAUR, 

 

                   Defendant. 

 

CASE NO.   :   04D323977 

DEPT. NO.  :   P 

 

NOTICE OF CROSS APPEAL 

Case Number: 04D323977

Electronically Filed
11/29/2019 10:16 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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from the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order entered October 22, 

2019.   

Dated this 29th day of November, 2019 

 

/s/   F. Peter James 

________________________________ 

LAW OFFICES OF F. PETER JAMES 

F. Peter James, Esq. 

Nevada Bar No. 10091 

3821 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 250 

Las Vegas, Nevada  89102 

702-256-0087 

Counsel for Plaintiff 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that on this 29th day of November, 2019, I caused the above and 

foregoing document entitled NOTICE OF CROSS APPEAL to be served as 

follows: 

[X] pursuant to EDCR 8.05(A), EDCR 8.05(F), NRCP 5(b)(2)(D) 

and Administrative Order 14-2 captioned “In the Administrative 

Matter of Mandatory Electronic Service in the Eighth Judicial 

District Court,” by mandatory electronic service through the 

Eighth Judicial District Court’s electronic filing system; 

 

[   ] by placing same to be deposited for mailing in the United States 

Mail, in a sealed envelope upon which first class postage was 

prepaid in Las Vegas, Nevada; 

 

[   ] pursuant to EDCR 7.26 / NEFCR 9, to be sent via facsimile / 

email; 

 

 

to the attorney(s) / party(ies) listed below at the address(es), email address(es), 

and/or facsimile number(s) indicated below: 

 Andrew L. Kynaston, Esq. 

 Kainen Law Group 

 3303 Novat Street, Suite 200 

 Las Vegas, Nevada  89129 

 702-823-4488 (fax) 

 Service@KainenLawGroup.com 

 Counsel for Defendant 

 

 

By: /s/   F. Peter James 

_________________________________________________________ 

 An employee of the Law Offices of F. Peter James, Esq., PLLC 
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HEIDI ALMASE 

DISTRICT JUDGE 

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. X 

LAS VEGAS, NV 89155 

 

OSEH 

 

 

 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

**** 

 

IN THE MATTER OF THE JOINT 

PETITION FOR DIVORCE OF:  

JASWINDER SINGH AND RAJWANT 

KAUR 

 

CASE NO:  04D323977 

DEPARTMENT X 

        

 

ORDER SETTING EVIDENTIARY HEARING 

 

TRIAL DATE:  AUGUST 16, 2021 

TRIAL TIME: 1:30PM 

PRE-TRIAL MEMO DUE: AUGUST 09, 2021 

 

TO COUNSEL AND LITIGANTS IN PROPER PERSON: 

  IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above-entitled case is set for an Evidentiary 

Hearing in Department X beginning on August 16, 2021 at the hour of 1:30 PM for a period 

of three (3) hours, in person, at the Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis Avenue, Las Vegas, 

NV.  

  IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Exhibits are not filed and must be submitted 

electronically pursuant to Administrative Order 20-10. See attached directions and form. 

Exhibits must be submitted no later than August 09, 2021. Four (4) sets of hard-copy exhibits 

must also be submitted prior to the hearing. This includes one set for the Court, one set for the 

witness stand, one set for opposing counsel/party, and one set for the party’s own use.   

  IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Discovery shall be completed no later than July 

16, 2021. 
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HEIDI ALMASE 

DISTRICT JUDGE 

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. X 

LAS VEGAS, NV 89155 

 

  IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Pre-Trial Memorandum shall comply with 

the attached form and be filed on or before August 09, 2021, and served on opposing counsel 

or proper person litigant the same day.  

 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that no continuances will be granted to either party 

unless written application is made to the Court, served upon opposing counsel or proper 

person litigant, and a hearing held at least three (3) days prior to the time of trial. If this matter 

settles, please advise the Court as soon as possible.  

  

  DATED this 15
th

 day of June, 2021 

 

By: 
 

 Heidi Almase 

 DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

 Department X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

619



 

1 
 

2 
 

3 
 

4 
 

5 
 

6 
 

7 
 

8 
 

9 
 

10 
 

11 
 

12 
 

13 
 

14 
 

15 
 

16 
 

17 
 

18 
 

19 
 

20 
 

21 
 

22 
 

23 
 

24 
 

25 
 

26 
 

27 
 

28 
      

HEIDI ALMASE 

DISTRICT JUDGE 

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. X 

LAS VEGAS, NV 89155 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

I hereby certify that I caused on the above file stamped date, a copy of the attached Order 

Setting Evidentiary Hearing to be e-served pursuant to NEFCR 9, and/or mailed postage 

prepaid to the following person or persons at their last known address: 

 

 

Peter James 

peter@peterjameslaw.com 

 

Andrew Kynaston 

Service@KainenLawGroup.com 

 

 

 

     

By: /s/ Natalie Castro 

 Natalie Castro 

 Judicial Executive Assistant 

 Department X 
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DIRECTIONS FOR COMPLETING EXHIBIT LIST 

 
**EXHIBITS ARE NOT FILED** 

**FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARINGS AND TRIALS** 

  

Please contact the Clerk’s office at FCEvidence@clarkcountycourts.us to receive a 
link to download your Exhibits. 
 
On the following form put either Plaintiff or Defendant on the line before the word 
EXHIBITS. Put your case number in the appropriate space. 
 
If you are the Plaintiff, all of your exhibits will be identified by NUMBERS. 
(Example: Exhibit 1, Exhibit 2, etc.) 
 
If you are the Defendant, all of your exhibits will be identified by LETTERS OF 
THE ALPHABET. (Example: Exhibit A, Exhibit B, etc.) 
 
You must identify each section of your exhibits and mark them with a divider 
which identifies the exhibit.  Exhibits are not to be bunched together in one group 
of papers and are to be numbered in the lower right corner. 
 
Example:  Exhibit 1 or Exhibit A 
 
 3 pages of bank statements would be tabbed with the appropriate number or 
 letter and submitted together. 
 
 2 pages of employment information would be tabbed with the appropriate 
 number or letter and submitted together. 
****************************************************************** 
 
 Exhibits must be downloaded and submitted to the opposing party by the 
 Discovery cut-off  date.   
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 EXHIBITS CASE NO.  
 
 OFFERED  ADMITTED 

 DATE OBJ DATE 
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 1 

PRE-TRIAL MEMORANDUM 
 

I. 
 

STATEMENT OF ESSENTIAL FACTS 
 

· Names and ages of the parties. 
 

· Date of Marriage. 
 

· Resolved issues, including agreed resolution. 
 

· Statement of unresolved issues. 
II. 

CHILD CUSTODY 

· Names, birth dates, and ages of the children. 

· Statement of provisions setting forth your requested custody and visitation order.  If some issues of legal and/or physical 

custody are resolved, note the resolution and define the disputed areas.  Specific suggested order provisions are requested. 

III. 

CHILD SUPPORT 

· Prepare and attach an Affidavit of Financial Condition/Financial Disclosure Form.  If one has been previously prepared, an 

updated and current form is required only if there are changes to prior affidavits.  However, the most current affidavit is 

required to be attached. 

· Set forth with specificity the amount of support requested to be paid and a brief statement of any special factors which you 

believe impact the amount of support to be paid. 

IV. 

SPOUSAL SUPPORT 

· State whether spousal support is requested and if so, whether the support requested is permanent or rehabilitative. 

· If spousal support is requested, state the amount of support requested and if rehabilitative, the duration for which support is 

requested. 

· Set forth the factors, in brief, that you request the Court to consider in establishing the amount of support or in denying or 

limiting the amount of support requested by the other party. 

· If an Affidavit of Financial Condition/Financial Disclosure Form has not been submitted, and support is requested, each party 

must submit and attach a current Affidavit of Financial Condition/Financial Disclosure Form or attach a copy of any 

previously-filed Affidavit providing the previously-filed Affidavit is current. 
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 2 

 

V. 

PROPERTY AND DEBTS 

· Prepare a list of all substantial property in accordance with the property Exhibit attached hereto.  This Exhibit is required to 

be complete to the best information of the parties. 

· Prepare a list of all secured and unsecured indebtedness including the creditors’ names, amount owed, and property secured 

by the obligation in accordance with the debt Exhibit attached hereto. 

· Define all contested legal and factual issues intended to be presented to the Court at time of trial regarding property and 

debts. 

VI. 

ATTORNEY’S FEES 

· If a request is made for payment of attorney’s fees and costs, provide the amount of fees and costs incurred to date.  Note 

additionally the amount of fees that have been paid and the amount remaining due and owing. 

VII. 

LIST OF WITNESSES 

· Other than the parties and resident witness, list all witnesses intended to be called by you.  Further provide a brief summary 

of the witnesses’ anticipated testimony. 

VIII. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

· List and identify specifically each item of evidence intended to be introduced by you at the time of trial. 

IX. 

UNUSUAL LEGAL OR FACTUAL ISSUES PRESENTED 

· List all other unusual legal or factual issues that you anticipate will be raised at trial.  Sufficiently explain the issues presented 

so that the Court may understand the issues presented clearly.  Citations of authorities should also be provided. 

X. 

LENGTH OF TRIAL 

· Length of Trial:____________ 

 

This Memorandum is a form only but should be followed where possible.  Additional sections may be included at the discretion of the 
party.  The intention is to provide the Court with a clear indication of the resolved and unresolved issues to expedite the trial time and 
to assist the Court in reaching a fair and speedy decision. 
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 3 

____________________________________________________ v. ___________________________________________________ 

ASSET SCHEDULE 

 
Asset 

Your opinion 
regarding 

value (gross) 

Manner in 
which title is 

held 

Name of Creditor with 
secured obligation on asset 

& loan balance 

Proposed Distribution 

Example: 
Home 
4444 Fourth St., Las Vegas NV 

$100,000 Joint Tenancy AAA Mortgage Co. 

$45,000 

Sell and divide proceeds 
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 4 

____________________________________________________ v. ___________________________________________________ 

DEBT SCHEDULE 

 
Creditor 

Amount 
Owed 

 
Assets securing obligation 

Proposed  
Resolution 

Example: 
ABC Creditor Inc. 

$25,000 First Trust Deed on residence at 123 6th Street, 
Las Vegas, NV 

Debt paid from proceeds 
of sale 
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PMEM 
LAW OFFICES OF F. PETER JAMES, ESQ. 
F. Peter James, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10091 
3821 West Charleston Boulevard, Suite 250 
Las Vegas, Nevada  89102 
Peter@PeterJamesLaw.com 
702-256-0087 
702-256-0145 (fax) 
Counsel for Plaintiff 

 
DISTRICT COURT, FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
I. 

STATEMENT OF ESSENTIAL FACTS 

A. Name of Plaintiff: Jaswinder Singh (58) 

B. Name of Defendant: Rajwant Kaur (age ?) 

C. Date of Marriage: November 11, 1989 

D. Date of Divorce: September 8, 2004 

E. Children:  None. 

 
JASWINDER SINGH, 
 
                   Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
RAJWANT KAUR, 
 
                   Defendant. 

 
CASE NO.   :   04D323977 
DEPT. NO.  :   X 
 
PLAINTIFF’S PRE-TRIAL 
MEMORANDUM 

Case Number: 04D323977

Electronically Filed
8/9/2021 6:28 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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F. Resolved Issues: None. 

G. Unresolved Issues: 

 Judicial Estoppel 

 Attorney’s fees award to Plaintiff 

II. 

INSTRUCTIONS ON REMAND 

The remand instructions provide that the Court inquire as to the judicial 

estoppel issue.  Judicial estoppel elements are as follows: 

1. The same party has taken two positions; 

2. The positions were taken in judicial proceedings; 

3. The party was successful in asserting the first position; 

4. The two positions are totally inconsistent; and 

5. The first position was not taken as a result of ignorance, fraud, or mistake. 

See In re Frei Irrevocable Tr. Dated Oct. 29, 1996, 133 Nev. 50, 56, 390 P,3d 

646, 652 (2017).  Rajwant fails the judicial estoppel test. 

Two Positions 

Rajwant has asserted two positions—that the parties (or at least Jaswinder) 

lived in Nevada at all times relevant and then that he (or they) did not.  This is 

not a contested issue.  The pleadings she signed (the Joint Petition and the 

Decree) .  The Motion to Set Aside clearly states she says no one lived in Nevada. 
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Judicial Proceedings 

 It is uncontested that both statements were made in judicial proceedings—

this very same case. 

Successful in the First Position 

 Clearly, Rajwant was successful in stating that the parties (or at least one 

of them) lived here as the Court (then a different judge) divorced her and 

Jaswinder. 

Inconsistent positions 

 To say now that no one lived in Nevada when she said at least that 

Jaswinder did before is to have wholly inconsistent positions.   

First Position Not Due to Ignorance, Fraud, or Mistake 

 When Rajwant stated that at least Jaswinder lived in Nevada at the time 

the parties divorced, it was not due to ignorance, fraud, or mistake.  The Court 

(Judge Pomrenze) made specific findings as to this.  (See Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and Order at 5:19 – 6:14).   

*  *  * 

 As such, Rajwant is judicially estopped.  As Rajwant is judicially estopped, 

the Motion to Set Aside must be denied. 

III. 

ATTORNEY’S FEES 
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 The Court should award Jaswinder attorney’s fees.  This matter has been 

fully briefed.  Should the Court be inclined to award Jaswinder fees, he will 

submit a Memorandum of Fees and Costs along with a copy of the billing 

statements. 

VII. 

LIST OF WITNESSES 

Dad intends on calling the following witnesses: 

The following witnesses are expected to testify as to the allegations 

contained in the pleadings filed herein: 

 The parties, specifically only Rajwant as Jaswinder’s testimony is not 

needed. 

 
VIII. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Dad intends on introducing the following exhibits at Trial: 

# Description Bates No. 
J. SINGH 

1. Executed release for employment records 000001 
2. Letter from Bank of America regarding records being 

unavailable 
000002 

3. Grant Bargain Sale Deed in the name of Balbinder Singh 
Pabla for Nevada property 

000003- 
000005 

4. Payment receipts for the Law Office of F. Peter James, 
Esq. dated 1/16/19 and 2/26/19 

000006- 
000007 
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5. Invoice # 2621, 2588, and 2606 from the Law Office of 
F. Peter James, Esq. (redacted) 

000008- 
000015 

6. Invoices from Constance Bessada, Esq. dated 6/13/18, 
8/21/18, and 1/3/19 (redacted) 

000016- 
000018 

7. Retainer Agreement for Law Offices of F. Peter James, 
Esq. 

000019- 
000022 

8. Retainer Agreement for Constance Bessada, Esq. 000023- 
000027 

9. Passport of Jaswinder Singh 000028- 
000030 

10. Documents disclosed by Defendant’s counsel at the 
August 19, 2019 deposition 

000031-
000039 

11. India Marriage Certificate Jasvir Singh Dhaliwal and 
Rajwant Kaur 

000040 

12.  India Divorce Ruling 000041-
000045 

13. Defendant’s Deposition Transcript    

14. Plaintiff’s Interrogatories to Defendant  

15. Defendant’s responses to the Interrogatories  

16. Plaintiff’s Requests for Production of Documents to 
Defendant 

 

17 Defendant’s responses to Requests for Production of 
Documents 

 

 

X. 

LENGTH OF TRIAL 

Plaintiff believes that trial in this matter will last one half-day, if things go 

smoothly. 
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XI. 

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE FORM  

 Plaintiff’s will submit an update FDF before trial. 

 

 

Dated this 9th day of August, 2021 
 
/s/   F. Peter James 
________________________________ 
LAW OFFICES OF F. PETER JAMES 
F. Peter James, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10091 
3821 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 250 
Las Vegas, Nevada  89102 
702-256-0087 
Counsel for Plaintiff 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that on this 9th day of August, 2021, I caused the above and 

foregoing document entitled PLAINTIFF’S PRE-TRIAL MEMORANDUM 

to be served as follows: 

[X] pursuant to EDCR 8.05(A), EDCR 8.05(F), NRCP 5(b)(2)(D) 
and Administrative Order 14-2 captioned “In the Administrative 
Matter of Mandatory Electronic Service in the Eighth Judicial 
District Court,” by mandatory electronic service through the 
Eighth Judicial District Court’s electronic filing system; 

 
[   ] by placing same to be deposited for mailing in the United States 

Mail, in a sealed envelope upon which first class postage was 
prepaid in Las Vegas, Nevada; 

 
[   ] pursuant to EDCR 7.26 / NEFCR 9, to be sent via facsimile / 

email; 
 
 

to the attorney(s) / party(ies) listed below at the address(es), email address(es), 

and/or facsimile number(s) indicated below: 

 
Andrew L. Kynaston, Esq. 

 Kainen Law Group 
 3303 Novat Street, Suite 200 
 Las Vegas, Nevada  89129 
 Counsel for Defendant 

 
 
 
 

 
By: /s/   F. Peter James 

_________________________________________________________ 
 An employee of the Law Offices of F. Peter James, Esq., PLLC 
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

Estoppel Issues 

The remand instructions provide that the Court inquire as to the judicial 

estoppel issue.  Once the Court finds in favor of judicial estoppel, the Court 

(Judge Pomrenze) already found that the remaining Vaile factors were not met.   

Judicial estoppel elements are as follows: 

1. The same party has taken two positions; 

2. The positions were taken in judicial proceedings; 

3. The party was successful in asserting the first position; 

4. The two positions are totally inconsistent; and 

5. The first position was not taken as a result of ignorance, fraud, or mistake. 

See In re Frei Irrevocable Tr. Dated Oct. 29, 1996, 133 Nev. 50, 56, 390 P,3d 

646, 652 (2017).  Rajwant fails the judicial estoppel test. 

Two Positions 

Rajwant has asserted two positions—that the parties (or at least Jaswinder) 

lived in Nevada at all times relevant and then that he (or they) did not.  This is 

not a contested issue.  The pleadings she signed (the Joint Petition and the 

Decree) .  The Motion to Set Aside clearly states she says no one lived in Nevada. 

Rajwant asserts that she did not understand the proceedings—that she did 

not understand the divorce documents.  The Court has already found that Rajwant 
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understood the documents and that she was divorcing Jaswinder to marry his 

brother.  See Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order at 5:19 – 6:14).  

The Court may not overrule the findings of the original district court judge.  See 

e.g. DCR 18(1); see also State v. Beaudion, 131 Nev. 473, 352 P.3d 39 (2015).   

Rajwant will assert, as she has in the appeal, that she did not have an 

understanding of the divorce.  This is factual and legal rubbish.  First, Rajwant 

admitted in the first trial that she knew she was going to Vegas to divorce 

Jaswinder so she could marry his brother.  The Court made findings as to this.  

Rajwant changed her tune and contradicted her own sworn testimony at the 

subsequent Evidentiary Hearing.  Moreover, blackletter law contradicts 

Rajwant’s assertions that she did not understand the divorce documents. 

Settlement agreements in divorce cases are in the nature of contract law.  

See Mack v. Estate of Mack, 125 Nev. 80, 95, 206 P.3d 98, 108 (2009).  A person 

who signs a contact is presumed to know and understand its contents; the failure 

to read a contract, or to apprehend the rights and obligations under it, will not 

prevent a waiver of its terms or conditions.  13 WILLISTON ON CONTRACTS § 

39.22 (4th ed. 2020); accord 7AP1 AM.JUR. PL. & PR. FORMS CONTRACTS § 126 

(March 2020) (if a person fails or refuses to read a contract, she cannot them 

complain of its provisions, nor claim that it contained provisions she knew 

nothing about); see also E. Allen Farnsworth, CONTRACTS § 3.7 at 116 (1982) 
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(provisions written in a foreign language are binding even if the person did not 

understand the language).   

On appeal, Rajwant cited to General Motors v. Jackson, 111 Nev. 1026, 

1031-32, 900 P.2d 345, 348-49 (1995) in support of her claim that she did not 

understand the decree when she signed it.  This reliance is misplaced.  Firstly, 

this was never properly raised in the district court.  That aside, the case does not 

actually support her position.  General Motors deals with capacity to enter into a 

contract in the context of being under a guardianship, being an infant, having a 

mental illness or mental defect, or being intoxicated—nothing about not speaking 

the language.  Well-settled law provides that contract provisions being in a 

different language does not prevent being bound to the terms—the same applies 

to blind and illiterate people.  See e.g. Paper Exp., Ltd. V. Pfankuch Maschinen 

GmbH, 972 F.2d 753, 757 (7th Cir. 1992). 

Rajwant’s own actions and admissions at the initial trial contradict her 

position on remand.  “Every one [sic] is presumed to know the law and this 

presumption is not even rebuttable.”  Smith v. State, 38 Nev. 477, 151 P. 512, 513 

(1915).  Bigamy is illegal.  See NRS 201.160; see also Cal.Penal Code § 281.  It 

is uncontested that Rajwant remarried after divorcing Jaswinder.  Rajwant merely 

wants the Court to believe she did not know.  In doing so, Rajwant would admit 

to bigamy.  The real truth is that Rajwant knew she was divorced. 
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Rajwant would have the Court believe that she did not know until 2018 

that she was divorced from Jaswinder.  This assertion on appeal directly 

contradicts Rajwant’s deposition transcript.   

Rajwant testified in her deposition that she married another man 

(Jaswinder’s brother) in November 2004.  (Deposition Tr. of Rajwant Kaur at  

14-15).  This was in response to being asked: 

Q. After the divorce [from Jaswinder] was filed on September 8, 2004, 

did you marry someone else? 

(Id. at 19).  Further, Rajwant admitted that Jaswinder did not remarry after they 

divorced, which was asked and answered as follows: 

Q. To your knowledge after you divorced Jaswinder in 2004, did he 

ever remarry? 

 A. No, he didn’t remarry. 

(Id. at 21).  So, Rajwant admits to the knowledge of the divorce in 2004 and as 

to the status of the marriage / the parties remarrying or not.  But, there is much 

more. 

 Rajwant attempted to deny knowing being divorced from Jaswinder after 

admitting she knew she was divorced.  (Deposition Tr. of Rajwant Kaur at 16-

17).  Upon being asked why she filed for divorce from Jaswinder in California 
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[just before filing the Motion to Set Aside], the questions and answers were as 

follows: 

 A. I was living in California.  I had to file over there. 

 Q. But you were already divorced from Jaswinder. 

 A. I don’t know about that.  We were living together in the same house. 

Q. But you just testified that you did not re-marry after you divorced 

Jaswinder’s brother and you just testified that you knew you 

divorced Jaswinder. 

A. He had divorced me to get his brother here, and he had told me that 

this will not be a permanent divorce, it would just be a divorce on 

papers. 

 Q. But you knew the judge had signed the Decree of Divorce? 

 A. He never showed me any papers that the judge signed or not signed. 

 Q. But you were aware you were divorced? 

A. I just told you that it was just to get his brother.  In reality, we were 

not divorced from each other. 

Q. That was not my question,  My question was you were aware that 

you were divorced, correct? 

 A. Yes, I do.  Yes, I know.   

(Id.).   
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 So, Rajwant admits that at the time she married Jaswinder’s brother she 

knew she was divorced from Jaswinder.  This directly contradicts the assertions 

made at the recent Evidentiary Hearing.  Moreover, this was not a contested issue 

as referenced in the initial Motion to Set Aside that Rajwant remarried after 

divorcing Jaswinder.  (Motion to Set Aside filed January 7, 2019 at 5:22-23).   

 Rajwant desperately wants the Court to think that there were not 

inconsistent statements.  Rajwant is tapdancing her way through these impossible 

legal gymnastics.   

Further, these whole fake claims of “paper divorce” and her marriage to 

Jaswinder’s brother was “not a real marriage” are hogwash.  As stated, everyone 

is presumed to know the law—and it is an irrebuttable presumption.  See Smith, 

38 Nev. at 477, 151 P. at 513.  A divorce is a divorce.  A marriage is a marriage.  

Ignorance of the law is no excuse.  See Whitehead v. Nev. Com’n. on Judicial 

Discipline, 111 Nev. 70, 245, 893 P.2d 866, 975 (1995) (Guy, Dist. J., 

concurring), superseded on other grounds by Mosley v. Nev. Com’n on Judicial 

Discipline, 117 Nev. 371, 22 P.3d 655 (2001).   

Rajwant knew what she was doing and why she was doing it when she 

signed the divorce papers in 2004.  The Court findings and Rajwant’s own 

testimony support this.  As such, there can be no fraud in the inducement.  

Moreover, Rajwant had to show that she was coerced into signing the divorce 
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papers as part of the Vaile standard.  This is due to Rajwant being a participant 

in the purported fraud upon the court.   

The in pari delicto doctrine provides that a party who has participated in 

wrongdoing may not recover damages resulting from the wrongdoing.  See 

BLACK’S LAW DICTIONARY 806-07 (8th ed. 2004).  The in pari delicto doctrine 

precludes a party who has engaged in wrongdoing from recovering when they are 

at least partially at fault.  See Official Committee v. R. F. Lafferty & Co., 267, 

F.3d 340, 354 (3d Cir. 2001), cited as to this doctrine in In re Amerco Derivative 

Litigation, 127 Nev. 196, 207 n.2, 252 P.3d 681, 689 n.2 (2011). 

This is the underpinnings of the Vaile standard and is why Rajwant had to 

establish that she was coerced into signing the divorce papers.  The Court already 

found that she was not coerced—by Rajwant’s own admission.  (See Findings of 

Fact, Conclusions of Law at 4-7).  This is why the Court granted Jaswinder’s oral 

motion for judgment on the evidence.   

Judicial Proceedings 

 It is incontrovertible that both and all relevant statements were made in 

judicial proceedings—this very same case.  Oddly, Rajwant wants to contest this 

factor using the aforementioned legal gymnastics.  Rajwant’s assertions to the 

contrary are meritless.  Rajwant is not even being intellectually honest, which 

impacts her credibility.  Oddly, the Court found that Rajwant testified credibly at 
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the first trial.  Rajwant contradicted her initial trial testimony at the subsequent 

evidentiary hearing. 

Successful in the First Position 

 Clearly, Rajwant was successful in stating that the parties (or at least one 

of them) lived here as the Court (then a different judge) divorced her and 

Jaswinder. 

Inconsistent positions 

 To say now that no one lived in Nevada when she said at least that 

Jaswinder did before is to have wholly inconsistent positions.  Rajwant can dance 

around this issue all she wants.  She can obfuscate the issues all day long.  The 

bottom line is that Rajwant made two inconsistent statements. 

First Position Not Due to Ignorance, Fraud, or Mistake 

 When Rajwant stated that at least Jaswinder lived in Nevada at the time 

the parties divorced, it was not due to ignorance, fraud, or mistake.  The Court 

(Judge Pomrenze) made specific findings as to this.  (See Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and Order at 5:19 – 6:14).  As stated, the Court cannot 

overrule the prior court on this.   

Moreover, as stated herein and as admitted at trial, Rajwant knew full well 

what she was doing in getting divorced—that it was happening and why.  Rajwant 

takes no personal responsibility for her actions—not even in marrying 
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Jaswinder’s brother.  The law simply does not support what Rajwant is 

claiming—that ignorance of the law is an excuse.  

*  *  * 

 As such, Rajwant is judicially estopped.  As Rajwant is judicially estopped, 

the Motion to Set Aside must be denied. 

Attorney’s Fees 

 Rajwant’s motion was fatally flawed, and it took many judicial 

proceedings to get to where the case is now—further denial of Rajwant’s 

requests.  The Supreme Court reversed the district court, which included the 

attorney’s fees.   

 Jaswinder prevailed on a motion for judgment on the evidence as Rajwant 

failed to even present evidence of the mandatory element of coercion on direct 

examination.  Failing to even offer evidence as to a mandatory element makes 

the claim per se frivolous.  See e.g. Woods-Gaston v. Sequoyah Enterprises, Inc., 

340 Fed.Appx 450, 452 (10th Cir. 2009); see also Cormier v. P.P.G. Industries, 

Inc., 519 F. Supp. 211, 272 (W.D. Louisiana 1981); State ex rel. Cephas v. Boles, 

142 S.E.2d 463, 465 (W.Va. 1965).   

 Jaswinder requested attorney’s fees under NRS 18.010 (frivolous position) 

and EDCR 7.60 (unnecessarily protracting the litigation).  As shown failure to 

present any evidence at all as to a mandatory element of a claim makes bringing 
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the claim per se frivolous.   

 Rajwant furthered the proceedings by appealing.  On remand, Rajwant 

utterly failed to meet counter the estoppel factors.  Clearly, judicial estoppel 

applies.  Rajwant’s own testimony establishes this.  Rajwant has wasted the 

Court’s precious resources and has needlessly caused Jaswinder to expend well 

in excess of $20,000.00 in attorney’s fees. 

The Court should award Jaswinder all of his attorney’s fees from the 

Opposition to the Motion to Set aside to the present.  NRS 18.010 allows the 

Court to liberally award fees when a party maintains a frivolous position.  EDCR 

7.60 permits an award of fees when a party unnecessarily protracts the litigation.   

 In determining the reasonableness of the fees to be awarded, the Court 

must analyze the following factors: 

 The qualities of the advocate: his ability, training, education, experience, 

professional standing, and skill; 

 The character of the work to be done: its difficulty, intricacy, importance, 

the time and skill required, the responsibility imposed, and the prominence 

and character of the parties where they affect the importance of the 

litigation; 

 The work actually performed by the lawyer: the skill, time, and attention 

given to the work; and 
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 The result:  whether the attorney was successful and what benefits were 

derived. 

See Brunzell v. Golden State Nat. Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 349, 455 P.2d 31, 33 (1969); 

see also Miller v. Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 623-24, 119 P.3d 727, 730 (2005).  The 

Court must also consider the relative income of the parties as this is a domestic 

case.  Miller, 121 Nev. at 623-24, 119 P.3d at 730.  No one element should 

predominate or be given undue weight.  Brunzell, 85 Nev. at 349, 455 P.2d at 33. 

 As to the Brunzell factors, Counsel has successfully litigated countless 

cases in the Family Division of this district court.  Counsel has successfully 

litigated numerous appeals and writ petitions at the Nevada Supreme Court.  

Numerous Family Court judges have confirmed that Counsel’s legal acumen 

warranted charging $400 per hour—with none disagreeing.  Counsel is in his 

fifteenth year of practice.  Counsel is an AV Preeminent Rated Family Law 

attorney by Martindale Hubbell, which is a career achievement award.  In 

addition to numerous other accolades, Counsel has been named one of the top 

family law attorneys in the state—and received a hand-signed letter from former 

Sen. Harry Reid regarding the same.  Counsel is a court-approved Settlement 

Master whom the Family Courts appoints cases for him to mediate on a pro bono 

basis.  All of the substantive work in this matter was performed by Counsel, not 

any junior associate or paralegal.  What work was done by a paralegal was billed 
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at a lower rate and supervised / amended by Counsel.  The legal work did require 

review of the complex factual history and of several key Nevada cases as to the 

issues presented.  To satisfy Miller, the filed Financial Disclosure Forms should 

evidence their respective income.  As to the result, that is up to the Court.   

 Should the Court be so inclined to award Jaswinder attorney’s fees, he will 

file a Memorandum of Fees and Costs with the redacted billing statements to 

comply with Love v. Love.   

 Dated this 13th day of September, 2021 

/s/  F. Peter James 
 
________________________________ 
LAW OFFICES OF F. PETER JAMES 
F. Peter James, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10091 
3821 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 250 
Las Vegas, Nevada  89102 
702-256-0087 
Counsel for Plaintiff 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that on this 13th day of September, 2021, I caused the above and 

foregoing document entitled PLAINTIFF’S CLOSING BRIEF to be served as 

follows: 

[X] pursuant to EDCR 8.05(A), EDCR 8.05(F), NRCP 5(b)(2)(D) 
and Administrative Order 14-2 captioned “In the Administrative 
Matter of Mandatory Electronic Service in the Eighth Judicial 
District Court,” by mandatory electronic service through the 
Eighth Judicial District Court’s electronic filing system; 

 
[   ] by placing same to be deposited for mailing in the United States 

Mail, in a sealed envelope upon which first class postage was 
prepaid in Las Vegas, Nevada; 

 
to the attorney(s) / party(ies) listed below at the address(es), email address(es), 

and/or facsimile number(s) indicated below: 

 Andrew L. Kynaston, Esq. 
 Kainen Law Group 
 3303 Novat Street, Suite 200 
 Las Vegas, Nevada  89129 
 Counsel for Defendant 
 
By: /s/   F. Peter James 

_________________________________________________________ 
 An employee of the Law Offices of F. Peter James, Esq., PLLC 
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FFCO 

 

 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 

 

JASWINDER SINGH, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

RAJWANT KAUR, 

Defendant 

Case No:    04-D-323977 

Dept. No:   X 

 

 

DATE OF HEARING: 08/16/2021 

TIME OF HEARING:  1:30PM 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER 

This matter came before the Court for non-jury bench trial in the above-captioned matter 

on August 16, 2021 following a December 19, 2020 Order of Reversal and Remand in Kaur v. 

Singh, 135 Nev. Adv. Op. 77, 477 P.3d 358 (2020), reh’g denied (January 13, 2021), en banc 

reconsideration denied, (March 18, 2021). 

Jaswinder (Jaswinder) Singh was present in the courtroom and represented by F. Peter 

James, Law Offices of F. Peter James.  Rajwant (Rajwant) Kaur was present in the courtroom 

and represented by Andrew L. Kynaston, Kainen Law Group PLLC.  Each party had the use of 

court-certified interpreter during the proceedings. 

Having reviewed the papers and pleadings on file herein and, after considering and 

weighing the credibility of the witnesses and exhibits admitted into evidence, this Court issues 

its Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order. 

PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

On August 27, 2004, the parties filed a Joint Petition for Summary Decree of Divorce 

(Joint Petition).  Both parties were self-represented.  The Joint Petition indicated the parties 

Electronically Filed
09/14/2021 11:46 AM

Case Number: 04D323977

ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
9/14/2021 11:46 AM
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2 

married on November 11, 1989 in Punjab, India.  Both parties signed the Joint Petition which 

included Verifications.  Also on August 27, 2004, the parties filed an Affidavit of Resident 

Witness wherein Balbinder Singh Pabla averred Jaswinder was a resident of Clark County, 

Nevada.  On September 8, 2004, a Summary Decree of Divorce (Decree) was filed.  Though the 

parties had then been married for a period of eighteen (18) years, no community property or 

debt was divided and neither party received an award for spousal support. 

On January 7, 2019, Rajwant filed a Motion to Set Aside Decree of Divorce.  In her 

motion, Rajwant requested the Decree be set aside pursuant to NRCP 60(b) and, further, alleged 

the Decree was void due to neither Rajwant nor Jaswinder being a resident of Nevada at the 

time the Decree was filed.  On January 23, 2019, Jaswinder filed his Opposition and 

Countermotion for Award for Attorney Fees and Costs.  Rajwant timely replied.  Following 

hearing on the pleadings, the Court determined a bench trial was warranted.  See Order (filed 

March 14, 2019). 

On September 12 and 13, 2019 bench trial was held.  On October 22, 2019, the Court 

issued its Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order (Order).  Specifically, relying on 

Vaile v. Eighth Jud. Dist. Ct., 118 Nev. 262, 44 P.3d 512 (2002), the Court denied Rajwant’s 

motion to set aside the September 8, 2004 Decree of Divorce.  In the nine-page order, the Court 

found Jaswinder “not credible in any portion of his testimony.”  See Order at p.4, ll.14-15 (filed 

October 22, 2019).  With respect to Rajwant’s testimony, the Court found her “more credible”.  

Id.  The Court’s conclusion Rajwant failed to demonstrate threat, duress or coercion, is tied to 

its application of the Vaile case which included its finding Rajwant knew she was executing 

divorce documents in Nevada.  Id. at p.4, ll.14-20, p.5, ll.1-20, p.6, ll.1-20 and p.7, ll.1-5.  Last, 

the Court additionally ordered both parties to bear his/her own attorney fees and costs. 
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On November 19, 2019, Rajwant filed her Notice of Appeal followed, on November 29, 

2019, with Jaswinder’s Notice of Appeal.  On November 12, 2020, oral argument was held on 

the appeal and cross-appeal.  As noted above, on December 19, 2020, the Nevada Supreme 

Court issued an Opinion wherein the matter was ordered reversed and remanded.   On January 

13, 2021, Jaswinder’s December 28, 2020 Petition for Rehearing was denied.  On March 18, 

2021, Jaswinder’s January 27, 2021 Petition for En Banc Rehearing was denied.  On April 13, 

2021, Remittitur issued. 

On January 4, 2021, this case was administratively reassigned from Department P to 

Department X. 

Following testimony and admission of exhibits, the parties stipulated to filing closing 

briefs.  Accordingly, on September 13, 2021, the parties filed and served their written closing 

briefs.  This decision follows. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 JURISDICTION 

Both parties in this case reside in California.  At issue in this case is the validity of the 

September 8, 2004 Summary Decree of Divorce filed in this Court.  This Court has the 

appropriate subject matter and personal jurisdiction to enter a decision on the challenged issues. 

TESTIMONY 

The following witness offered testimony in this case:   

 Rajwant Kaur (Defendant). 

Rajwant testified she is currently 64 years of age.  Rajwant testified her marriage was an 

arranged marriage taking place in 1989 in India.  Rajwant testified she has the equivalent of a 

high school education and her native language is Punjabi.  Rajwant testified she immigrated to 
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the United States in 1989 and her English language abilities at that time were negligible. 

Currently, Rajwant testified she does not speak much English and can understand the 

English language to a limited extent.  Specifically, Rajwant testified she can read some English, 

is not able to write very much English but can find her way around.  Rajwant testified she has 

been employed at Sherman Oaks Hospital as a certified nursing assistant, a job she has held for 

twenty years.  Rajwant testified she was not required to take a written test to obtain her 

employment and is only required to speak some English in order to engage in basic nursing, 

cleaning, feeding and hygiene assistance duties. 

Rajwant testified she currently resides with Jaswinder in their California residence.  

Rajwant testified other family members co-reside with her and Jaswinder at the residence. 

Rajwant testified she traveled with Jaswinder to Las Vegas in 2004.  Rajwant testified 

Jaswinder told her they were going to obtain a “paper divorce” in order to assist bringing his 

brother to the United States from India.  Rajwant testified, on arrival in Las Vegas, she and 

Jaswinder when to a friend of Jaswinder’s, had some food and signed divorce paperwork which 

had already been prepared.  Rajwant testified she did not know what the papers were at the time 

and did not understand what the papers meant.  Specifically, Rajwant testified she did not assist 

in the preparation of the papers she signed, was not given the opportunity to read the documents 

but did not understand or was able to read the documents in any event.  Rajwant testified that, in 

2004, her ability to read and understand English was more limited than presently and even if she 

had been given additional time to read the Nevada divorce documents, she would not have been 

able to understand the documents.  In particular, Rajwant testified she had no additional 

expertise understanding legal documents.  Rajwant denied being given the opportunity to have 

the documents translated to her native language.  Rajwant additionally testified she was not told 
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by Jaswinder or any other person she had the right to consult with any attorney related to the 

Nevada divorce documents. 

Rajwant testified she was never given a copy of the Joint Petition or Decree.  Rajwant 

additionally testified she was never notified of any Nevada residency requirement or the need 

for an Affidavit of Resident Witness in support of the Decree.  When asked if she knew what a 

Joint Petition for Divorce was, Rajwant testified she did not know what kind of document it was.  

Rajwant testified she signed the Nevada divorce documents because her husband, Jaswinder, 

told her to sign and she always did as he told her.  Rajwant testified she and Jaswinder left Las 

Vegas in 2004 after their visit and returned to California.  Rajwant testified, upon return to their 

California home, she and Jaswinder continued to live as husband and wife.  Specifically, 

Rajwant testified “nothing changed”.  Rajwant testified the parties continue to live together, 

have combined finances and that her paycheck continues to be a direct deposit to the parties’ 

joint bank account. 

Rajwant testified she believed the Nevada proceeding was, as Jaswinder told her, a 

“paper divorce” which would allow her to marry his brother.  To that end, Rajwant testified she 

traveled to India and married Jaswinder’s brother.  Afterwards, Rajwant testified she returned to 

the United States with Jaswinder and her in-laws.  Rajwant denied consummating the marriage 

to Jaswinder’s brother and testified the brother was, in fact, married to someone else in India.  

Additionally, Rajwant testified Jaswinder married his brother’s wife.  Rajwant testified 

Jaswinder’s brother was not able to obtain a US VISA, despite her marriage to him, resulting in 

the brother remaining in India.  Rajwant testified she ultimately obtained a 2008 Indian divorce 

from Jaswinder’s brother.  Rajwant testified she complied with the request to marry Jaswinder’s 

brother because Jaswinder’s family wanted to be together in the United States. 
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Rajwant testified she became aware of the 2004 Nevada Decree of Divorce in 2018 

when she filed for divorce in California.  Rajwant testified she had service of the California 

divorce documents effectuated on Jaswinder.  Rajwant testified she became aware of the 2004 

Nevada divorce when Jaswinder filed responsive pleadings alleging the parties were already 

divorced.  Rajwant testified the California divorce proceeding remains on hold pending the 

outcome of the instant case.  Rajwant testified she did not fully understand what would happen 

to the California divorce proceedings if the 2004 Nevada Decree was not set aside.  However, 

Rajwant testified she has no money of her own and was afraid Jaswinder would lock her out of 

the home.  Rajwant testified she is twelve years older than Jaswinder and that “everything is in 

his name”. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

In its December 10, 2020 Opinion, the Nevada Supreme Court made specific findings 

and orders which govern the ambit of this Court’s bench trial on remand.  First, the Court 

concluded Rajwant’s Motion to Set Aside the Decree was timely under NRCP 60(b)(3) and (4) 

and this Court did not abuse its discretion in making that determination.  Kaur, 136 Adv. Op at 

___, 477 P.3d at361.  Second, the Court concluded this court erroneously applied Vaile v. 

Eighth Jud. Dist. Ct., 118 Nev. 262, 44 P.3d 506 (2002).  Id. at ___, 477 P.3d at 362.  Next, the 

Supreme Court concluded this Court’s determination the 2004 divorce decree was voidable 

under Vaile was not erroneous.  Id.  Specifically, while the Supreme Court concluded the 2004 

Decree was not void, it could nonetheless be voidable if Rajwant demonstrated this Court did 

not have jurisdiction at the time it entered the Decree.  Id.  As such, the Nevada Supreme Court 

concluded this Court did not err when is concluded neither Rajwant or Jaswinder resided in 

Nevada for the requisite six weeks and the Decree was, therefore, voidable.  Id.  Last, the 
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Supreme Court concluded this Court erroneously applied the doctrine of judicial estoppel.  Id. at 

___, 477 P.3d at 363 (citing Vaile¸118 Nev. at 273, 44 P.3d at 514).  In particular, the Supreme 

Court concluded this Court improperly applied Vaile by concluding judicial estoppel applied 

where Rajwant failed to prove she was operating under duress or coercion.  Specifically, the 

Nevada Supreme Court concluded this Court failed to first determine if judicial estoppel applied 

under the In re Frei Irrevocable Tr. Dated Oct. 29, 1996, 133 Nev. 50, 56, 390 P.3d 646, 652 

(2017) five-factor test and, if so, to then determine if duress or coercion – defenses to judicial 

estoppel – applied.  Id. 

Governing Law 

In Kaur, the Nevada Supreme Court clarified the five-factor test for judicial estoppel as 

follows: 

“Well-established caselaw sets forth a five-factor test for courts to consider when 

determining whether judicial estoppel applies: whether “(1) the same party has taken two 

positions; (2) the positions were taken in judicial or quasi-judicial administrative 

proceedings; (3) the party was successful in asserting the first position (i.e., the 

tribunal adopted the position or accepted it as true); (4) the two positions are totally 

inconsistent; and (5) the first position was not taken as a result of ignorance, fraud, or 

mistake.” In re Frei Irrevocable Tr. Dated Oct. 29, 1996, 133 Nev. 50, 56, 390 P.3d 646, 

652 (2017) (internal quotation marks omitted).” 

 

Kaur v. Singh, 136 Nev. Adv. Op. 77, 477 P.3d 358, 362–63 (2020). 

 
 The Supreme Court went on to clarify that, while application of judicial estoppel is 

discretionary with the trial court, “judicial estoppel should be applied only when a party’s 

inconsistent position arises from intentional wrongdoing or an attempt to obtain unfair 

advantage.”  Id. at __, 477 P.3d at 363 (emphasis in original)(quoting NOLM, LLC v. Cty. of 

Clark, 120 Nev. 736, 743, 100 P.3d 658, 663 (2004)).  Thus, a party seeking application of 

judicial estoppel must show “the first position was not taken as a result of ignorance, fraud, or 

mistake.”  Id.  Put another way, in order for Jaswinder to prevail on his assertion Rajwant is 
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judicially estopped from challenging the 2004 Decree, he must demonstrate Rajwant did not 

take her initial, first position – executing the summary divorce documents – as a result of 

ignorance, fraud or mistake.  To that end, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded as follows: 

“Significantly, the district court failed to make findings regarding whether Rajwant was 

operating under ignorance, fraud, or mistake when she signed the divorce decree, in light 

of her claims that she could not read or understand the decree.  Had the district court 

made findings concerning this factor and determined that Rajwant was operating under 

ignorance, fraud, or mistake, it could have declined to apply the doctrine of judicial 

estoppel without ever reaching the issue of whether Rajwant's defense of duress and 

coercion was proven.” 

 

Kaur v. Singh, 136 Nev. Adv. Op. 77, 477 P.3d 358, 363 (2020). 

 

 Accordingly, on remand, this Court must consider and apply the five-factor test set forth 

in In re Frei Irrevocable Trust in order to determine if the doctrine of judicial estoppel applies 

and, if so, whether Rajwant has met her burden demonstrating duress or coercion is a defense. 

 IN RE FREI IRREVOCABLE TRUST FIVE-FACTOR ANALYSIS 

Has Rajwant Taken Two Positions? 

In the first instance, the underlying record indicates Rajwant signed and verified both the 

August 27, 2004 Joint Petition for Divorce and the September 8, 2004 Summary Decree of 

Divorce (the First Position).  The Court FINDS, on January 7, 2019, Rajwant filed her Motion 

to Set Aside the Decree of Divorce on the grounds Nevada did not have jurisdiction rendering 

the Decree void and that she was forced to execute the Nevada divorce documents (the Second 

Position).  Accordingly, the Court FINDS Rajwant has taken a position in one proceeding that is 

contrary to her position in a previous position.  Kaur, 136 Adv. Op. at ___, 477 P.3d at 362 

(citing Vaile, 118 Nev. at 273, 44 P.3d at 514). 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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Were Rajwant’s Positions Taken in a Judicial or Quasi-Judicial Administrative 

Proceeding? 

 

This Court FINDS it is a court of record in the Eighth Judicial District Court and that the 

2004 Decree of Divorce was duly executed and filed by this Court.  Accordingly, this Court 

FINDS Rajwant’s positions were taken in a judicial proceeding.   

Was Rajwant Successful in Asserting the First Position (Did the Tribunal Adopt 

the Position as True)? 

 

The Court FINDS, within the context of a summary divorce proceeding, the Court 

accepted as true the contents of the August 27, 2004 Joint Petition for Divorce and supporting 

August 27, 2004 Affidavit of Resident Witness.  Thus, to the extent the parties sought and 

obtained a summary divorce, the parties were successful in asserting the jurisdiction of this 

Court in order to obtain the divorce.  Accordingly, the Court FINDS Rajwant was successful in 

asserting her First Position. 

Are the Two Positions Totally Inconsistent? 

The Court FINDS clear and convincing evidence has credibly established Rajwant’s 

First Position and Second Position are totally inconsistent.  In particular, the Court FINDS it 

clearly illogical Rajwant would be cognizant she was divorced in Nevada and, nonetheless, file 

for divorce in California fourteen years later.  This course of conduct, filing for divorce in 

California in 2018, is directly opposed and inconsistent with Rajwant knowingly obtaining a 

2004 Nevada divorce.  The Court FINDS no evidence suggesting Rajwant’s first position was 

the result of intentional wrong-doing or an attempt to gain unfair advantage.  Kaur, 136 Nev. 

Adv. Op at ___, 477 P.3d at 363 (quoting NOLM, LLC v. Cty. of Clark, 120 Nev. 736, 743, 100 

P.3d 658, 663 (2004)). 

/ / / 
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Was Rajwant’s First Position NOT Taken as a result of Ignorance, Fraud or 

Mistake? 

 

The Court FINDS Rajwant credibly testified her ability to read and understand English is 

currently limited.  The Court further FINDS Rajwant credibly testified her ability to read and 

understand English is better currently than it was in 2004 at the time the Nevada divorce papers 

were filed and executed by this Court.   The Court FINDS credible Rajwant’s testimony she 

relied on Jaswinder’s assertion the 2004 Nevada divorce was a “paper divorce” only, that 

Rajwant was unable to read or understand the Nevada divorce documents Jaswinder gave her to 

sign and that Rajwant was not given a copy of the 2004 Nevada Decree.  The Court FINDS 

credible Rajwant’s testimony she believed the Nevada proceeding was in name only where 

testimony clearly and convincingly demonstrated the parties returned to California and 

continued to cohabitate with combined property and finances.  The Court FINDS Rajwant 

credibly testified she routinely did what Jaswinder told her to do throughout the marriage to 

include obeying his mandate she engage in a sham marriage with his brother in order to bolster 

the brother’s attempts to immigrate to the United States.  Specifically, the Court FINDS 

Rajwant was an unknowing victim of a fraud perpetrated by Jaswinder in the Nevada courts. 

Jaswinder argues this Court is bound by its prior finding Rajwant understood the Nevada 

divorce documents and was knowingly divorcing Jaswinder to assist his brother’s immigration 

application.  See Jaswinder’s Closing Brief at p.2, ll.19-20 and p.3, ll.1-10 (filed September 13, 

2021).  However, as noted herein, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded this Court’s application 

of judicial estoppel was erroneous.  See Kaur, 137 Nev. Adv. Op at ___, 477 P.3d at 362-

63(noting duress and coercion are a defense to judicial estoppel and concluding the district court 

failed to first consider whether the five-factor test favored application of judicial estoppel).  

Contra Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order at pp.4-6 (filed October 22, 
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2019)(concluding Rajwant knew there was a divorce in Nevada and failed to demonstrate 

sufficient evidence she acted under duress in executing the Nevada divorce documents).  Thus, 

as directed by the Nevada Supreme Court, this Court must make findings “regarding whether 

Rajwant was operating under ignorance, fraud, or mistake when she signed the divorce decree. . 

.”  Id. at ___, 477 P.3d 363.  Further, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded this Court did not 

abuse its discretion where it concluded Rajwant credibly testified she believed the 2004 divorce 

“was merely a paper divorce as Jaswinder told her” and where “she did not believe she and 

Jaswinder were divorced where they continued living together”.  Id. at ___, 477 P.3d at 

362(addressing the timeliness of Rajwant’s motion for NRCP 60(b) relief).  It is implausible the 

Supreme Court would find this Court did not abuse its discretion in finding Rajwant credible 

related to her testimony about the 2004 Nevada Decree in one instance but not credible as to the 

same testimony in a second instance.  Therefore, this Court finds no support for Jaswinder’s 

assertion it is bound by the prior finding. 

Accordingly, the Court FINDS Rajwant was operating under ignorance where clear and 

convincing evidence demonstrates Rajwant was not able to adequately read or understand 

English sufficient to understand the nature of the 2004 Nevada divorce documents.  The Court 

also FINDS clear and convincing evidence demonstrated Rajwant executed the documents 

based on Jaswinder’s fraudulent representations the proceeding was a “paper divorce” or 

divorce in name only.  Thus, the Court FINDS Rajwant was operating under ignorance or fraud.  

Because this Court FINDS clear and convincing evidence credibly demonstrates Rajwant was 

operating under ignorance, fraud or mistake, the Court DECLINES to apply the doctrine of 

judicial estoppel. 

/ / / 
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ORDERS 

 NOW THEREFORE, based on the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 

and, good cause appearing: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that this Court has complete jurisdiction to enter a final 

Order in this matter. 

 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, having reviewed the five-factor test set forth  In re 

Frei Irrevocable Tr. Dated Oct. 29, 1996, 133 Nev. 50, 56, 390 P.3d 646, 652 (2017), clear and 

convincing evidence credibly demonstrates Defendant Rajwant Kaur was operating under 

ignorance, fraud or mistake.  Therefore, the Court DECLINES to apply the doctrine of judicial 

estoppel. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the September 8, 2004 Decree of Divorce is 

VOIDABLE where neither party resided in Nevada for the requisite six weeks prior to filing of 

the August 27, 2004 Joint Petition for Divorce.  Therefore, this Court did not have jurisdiction 

to enter the September 8, 2004 Decree of Divorce. 

 IT IS FURTHER ORDERDED that Defendant Rajwant Kaur’s January 7, 2019 Motion 

to Set Aside Decree of Divorce pursuant to NRCP 60(b) is GRANTED and the September 8, 

2004 Decree of Divorce is found VOIDABLE and ORDERED SET ASIDE.  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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13 

 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff Jaswinder Singh’s January 23, 2019 

Countermotion for Award for Attorney Fees and Costs is DENIED. 

 

 

 

HEIDI ALMASE 

District Court Judge 
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